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Independent Auditor’s Repott

To the Members of Finoclean Specialties Private Limited
Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Finoclean Specialties Private Limited
(‘the Company’), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 31" March 2025, the statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to financial statements, including a
summary of the material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 on the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”), and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2025, and its
loss, other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SA’s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SA’s
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but

does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the othet
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained duting the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a matetial misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the Company’s annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take
necessary actions, as applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

Management’s and Board of Director’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors ate responsible for the matters stated in
Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and
presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity
of the Company in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were opetating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and ate free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or etror.

In prepating the financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
cither intends to liquidate the Company ot to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The Board of Ditectors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
5S0Ciqy
B &

process.
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Auditor’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one tesulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concetn basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we ate required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures ate inadequate, to modify our opinion. Out
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
teport. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Champak K. Dedhia 8.com., Fca
Gautam R. Mota B.Com., LLB, FCA
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the cutrent
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
citcumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the Company has not paid
remuneration to its directors during the year. Thus, provisions of and limits laid down as
under Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act is not applicable.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act,
we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and
4 of the order.

3 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion propet books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(© The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash
Flow dealt with by this Repott are in agrecement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;
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(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31*
March 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed as a ditector in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act;

€3] The report does not include our Report on Internal Financial Controls under
clause (i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Act, as in our opinion and
according to the information and explanation given to us, the said reporting
requirement is not applicable to the Company.

€3] With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i, The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations (if any) as at
31 March, 2025 on its financial position in its financial statements.

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law
or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-
term contracts including derivative contracts.

iid. There has been no delay in transferring amounts required to be
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.

iv. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts,

a. No funds have been advanced or loaned ot invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities 'Intermediaries’, with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 'Ultimate
Beneficiaries' or provide any guarantee, secutity or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

b. no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities 'Funding Parties', with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party 'Ultimate Beneficiaries' or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries and
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c. Based on audit procedures carried out by us, that we have considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to
our notice that has caused us believe that the representations under sub-
clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

V. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has
used accounting software’s for maintaining its books of account for the
financial year ended 31st March, 2025 which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software’s. Further, during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail
feature being tampered with.

For CGCA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
+ Firm Regn No: 123393W /W100755

Place: Mumbai
Date: 20" May, 2025
UDIN: 25101769BMILXFX4096
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on
the financial statements for the year ended 31* March 2025, we report that:

i.  Property, Plant and Equipment:

2)
A. The Company has maintained proper tecords showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

B. The Company is not owning any intangible assets, hence clause 3()(a)(B) of the
Ordet is not applicable;

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company has has a regular programme of physical
verification of its fixed assets by which fixed assets are verified in a phased manner over
a period of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

¢) The Company is not owning any immovable properties, hence clause 3(i)(c) of the Order
is not applicable.

d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant & Equipment or Intangible assets or
both during the year, hence clause 3 (i)(d) of the Order is not applicable

e) As represented to us by the management, no proceedings have been initiated or are
pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder, hence
clause 3 (i)(e) of the Order is not applicable

il. Inventory:
a) The inventoties have been physically verified by the management during the year, which
we consider to be reasonable and coverage as followed by the management wete

appropriate.

b) The Company has no working capital loans from any banks or financial institutions and
hence clause 3 (i) (b) of the order is not applicable

1A

MEMBERSHIP NO.
101788
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iii. =~ Loans and Advances granted:

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments,
provided guarantee or security or granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to Companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the
year and therefore clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

iv. Compliances with Sections 185 and 186 in case of loans, investments, guarantees and
security:

According to the information and explanations given to -us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any guarantee
ot security as specified under Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. In respect of
investments made by the Company, in out opinion the provisions of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with.

V. Deposits:

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
from the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

vi. Cost Records:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation give by the management,
the Central Government has not presctibed maintenance of cost records under sub section
(1) of Section 148 of the Act, for any of the activities carried on by the Company.

The maintenance of cost records is not applicable to the Company as confirmed by the
Management.

Vil Statutory Dues:

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees
state insurance, income-tax, sales tax, value added tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
service tax, cess and other material statutory dues as and wherever applicable to the
Company, with appropriate authorities and no dues remain outstanding for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.
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b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no material dues of
income tax, sales tax, value added tax, service tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs,
duty of excise which have not been deposited with the apptopriate authorities on
account of any dispute except for the following:

Name of the | Nature of | Amount Period to which | Forum where
statute dues (in Rs | the amount | dispute is pending
lacs) relates
Income Tax | Income Tax 0.08 AY 2024-25 Centralised
Act, 1961 Dues Processing  Centre
(CPC)
viii. Income tax Assessment:

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, the Company has not surtendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

ix. Dues to Financial Institutions/Banks:

The Company has no loans or borrowings from any financial institution, banks,
government or debenture holders during the year hence clause 3 (ix) of the Order is not
applicable;

X. Application of Initial Public Offer:

a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public
offer (including debt instruments) or term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
(fully, partially or optionally) convertible into debentures during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xi. Frauds:
a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no matetial fraud by the

Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.
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b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by
the auditors in Form ADT-4 as presctibed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government;

c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle-blower complaints
received by the Company during the year; hence clause 3 (xi)(c) is not applicable to the

Company;

xii. Nidhi Companies:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii, =~ Compliances with Sections 177 and 188 in case of transactions with related parties:

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, transactions with the related patties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting
Standards.

xiv.  Internal Audit:
According to the information given to us and based on our examination of records of the
Company, internal audit is not applicable to the Company as per the relevant provision of

the Act and hence reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

XV. Compliances with Sections 192 in case of non-cash transactions with Directors:

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable.

xvi. Registration with RBI:

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
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xvii. Cash Losses:
The Company has incurred cash loss of Rs 0.50 lacs during the financial year.

xviii.  Resignation of Statutory Auditor:

There has been no resignation of the Statutory Auditors during the year and accordingly
clause 3 (xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

Xix. Financial Viability:

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exist as on the date of the audit report that company is not
capable of meetings its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

xx.  Corporate Social Responsibility

As per information and explanation given to us, the provisions of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect to Corporate Social Responsibility is not applicable to the
Company. Thus, reporting under clause (a) & (b) of 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

xxi., Consolidated Financial Statements:

Company is not having any subsidiaries or Joint Venture or associate and hence not required
to prepare consolidated financial statements, hence clause 3 (xxi) of the Order is not

applicable.

For CGCA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No: 123393W /W100755

Place: Mumbai
Date: 20" May, 2025
UDIN: 25101769BMLXFX4096

Membership/No: 101769

Regd. Off.: 907, Kohincor Square, Central Tower, NC Kelkar Marg, RG Gadkari Chowk, Dadar (W), Mumbai - 400 028.
T:+91 22 4042 2400 E : info@cgcaindia.com W : www.cgcaindia.com LLPIN : AAX-4139



FINOCLEAN SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

(All amount in Rupses lakhs, unless otherwise statod)

: As at As at
Particulars No.
: fotetic March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Non - Curregnt Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment 3 22.21 2385
Financial assels
Investmenl 4 54.65 60.12
Other financial 3552t 5 0.20 -
Deferred tax ef 6 0.60 0.50
Total Non - Current Assetls 77.67 84.56
Current Assets
Inventories 7 2.10 0.52
Financial Assels
eivables 8 8.13 2.43
Cash & Cash Equivalents 9 5.34 517
Other Current Assels 10 572 5.87
Total Current Assels 21.30 13.99
TOTAL ASSETS 98.97 93.56
As at As at
Parti 3
Al hotatlo March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equily Share Capital 11 100.00 100.00
Other Equity 12 (2.90) (1 27)
TOTAL EQUITY 97.10 98.23
Current Liabilities
Finaricial Li es
Tracie Payables 13
Tolal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterpris - %
Tolal oulstanding dues of credilors other than micro 101
enlerprises and small enlerprises : B
Olher Current Lisklties 14 0.08 017
Provisions 15 0.78 0.15
Total Current Liabilities 1.87 0.32
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1.87 0.32
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 98.97 98.55
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
This is the halance sheet referred to in our report of even date
For CGCA &~ Associales LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants CIN:U20297MH 41
Firm Reg. No. 123393W/W100755
/
EDHIA /"!M p
CHAMPAK K. DED .
MEMBERSHIP NO.
Surendrakumar Tibrewala Sanjay Tibrewala
Chairman & Managing Director Executive Director & CFO
DIN: 002183394 DIN : 00218525
Mumbai, 20th May, 2025




FINOCLEAN SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
(All amount in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise staled)
- For The Year Ended For the Period ended
Particulars Note. No.
oteo March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income
Revenue from Operalions 16 9.96 2.08
Other Income 17 463 0.12
Total Income 14.59 2.18
Expenses
Cost of Material Consumed 18 298 0.98
Change In Inventories of Finished Goods/Stock in Trade 19 (1.15) (0.05)
Depreciation and Amortizalion 20 1.64 0.02
Other Expenses 21 12.27 1.32
Total Expenses 15.73 2.27
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (1.14) (0.09)
Tax Expenses
Current Tax a %
Deferred Tax 6 0.01 0.60
Profit After Tax (1.13) 0.51
Other Comiprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit & Loss
Remezasurement of Defined Benefit Obligation = -
Income Tax related to above -
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the period -
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (1.13) 0.51 |
Earnings Per Share - Basic & Diluted (%) 23 (0.11) 0.20
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date
For CGCA &~ Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants CIN:U20297MH2023PTC416393 7™
Firm Reg. No. 123393W/W100755 ;
UDIN : 2510176 9BMLXFX4096 — Surendrakumar Tibrewala Sanjay Tibrewala
Mumbai, 20th May, 2025 Chairman & Managing Director Executive Director & CFO
DIN: 00218394 DIN : 00218525
Mumbai, 20th May, 2025




FINOCLEAN SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

(All amount in Rupess lakhs, uniess otherwise stated)

For The Year Ended

For the Period

Firm Reg. No. 123393W/W100755

" Surendrakumar Tibrewala
Mumbai, 20th May, 2025 P— Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00218394

Chartered Accountants CIN:U20297MH2023PTC415308

DUTIES

Particulars ended
March 31, 2025 March 34, 2024
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit / (Loss) Before Tax (1.14) (0.09)
Add / (Less):- Adjustments for Non-Cash / Non-Operating ltems:
Depreciation & Amortization 1.64 0.02
Gain On FVTPL Mutual Fund (3.95) (0.12)
Gain On sale of Mutual Fund (0.59) -
(2.589) (0.10)
Operating Profit Belore Working Capital Changes (4.03) (0.19)
Movement in working capital :
23S o in Trade Receivables (5.70) (2.43)
n Inventories (1.57) (0.52)
n Other Current Assets 0.65 (5.87)
(Incre n Other Financials Ascet (0.20) -
Inceeasa [ (Deciease) in Trade Payable 1.01 -
Inc: 2 [ (D }in Other Current Liabilities (0.09) 0.17
Incieass / (Decieass) in Current Provisions 0.53 0.15
(5.28) (8.50)
Cash Generated from QOperations (9.32) (8.69)
Less: Taxes Paid (Net of refund received) (0.50) -
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITY (A) (9.82) (8.69)
B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(Purchase) / Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment & Inlangible Assets (Nel) - (23.87)
Investments (Purchaszd)/ Sold in Securities (Nel) 10.00 (60.00)
NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITY (B) 10.00 (83.87)
c CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY
Issue of equity shares on incorporalion = 100.00
Company incoiporation / shaie issue expenses = (2.28)
NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY (C) - 97.72
NET CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR (A + B + C) 0.18 5.17
Add: Opening Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalents 5.17 -
CLOSING BALANCE OF CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 5.35 547
COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT
Batance with banks in current accounts 3.00 4.70
Cazsh on Hand 235 0.47
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AT THE END OF THE YEAR 5.34 517
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
This is the Statement of Cash Flow referred to in our report of even date
For CGCA & Associales LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sanjay Tibrewala
Executive Director & CFO
DIN : 00218525

Mumbai, 20th May, 2025




FINOCLEAN SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Material Accounting Policies

1 BACKGROUND

Finociean Specialities Private Limiled is a Private linsited by shares domiciled in India, incorporaled under the provisions of Companies Act,
2013 Its regisiered office is situated at 42,43 Manorama Chambers, 8.V. Road Bandra (West) Mumbai - 400050 India,
The Company is engaged in the business of manufaciuring of Textile chemicals, auxiliaries and specialty chemicals. The company is

incarporaled on 30th December, 2023,

2 STATEMENT ON MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
This note provides a list of lhe Material Ace ounting Poiicies adopled in the preparation of these Financial Stalements. These policies have
been cansistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwize slaled. '

2,1 BASIS FOR PREPARATION OF ACCOUNTS
a) Statement of compliance with Ind AS
These financial stalements are the separais financial stalements of the Company (also ealled slandalone financial slalements)
prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') notified under ssction 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read
together with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended).

b) The Standaione financial slalements are approved for issue by the Board of Direclars on 20th May, 2025,

c) Current versus Non-Current classification
All assels and liabilities have been classified as Current or Non Current as per the Company's normal aperation cycle ie. twelve
manths and other crileria set out in the Schedule Il of the Act,

d

Historical Cost Convention

The financial stalements are prepared on accrual basis of accounting under hislorical cost convention in accordance
with Generally Accepled Accounting Principles in India and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
including Indian Accounting Standards notified there under, except for the following:

- Cerlain financial assels and liabilities (inchiding derivative instrument) measured at fair value;

- assels held for sale - measured at lower of carrying amaunt or fair value less cost to sell;

- Defined benefit plans - plan assels measured at fair value

2

n

USE OF ESTIMATES
In preparation of the financial statements, the Company makes jurgements, estimales and assumplions about the carrying values of

assets and liabiiities that are nol readily apparent from other sources. The eslimales and the associaled assumptions are based on
hisinrical experience and other faciors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from lhese eslimales.

The eslimales and underlying 2ssumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the accounting eslimales are recognised
in the period in which the esfimales are revised and in any fulure periods affected.

Significant judgmenis and eslimales relating to the carmying values of asssts and liabilities include useful lives of property, plant and
equipment and intangible sssets, impaimment of property, plant and equipment, intangible assels and investments, impairment of trade
receivabies, provision for employee benefits and ofher provisions, recoverability of deferred tax assels, commilments and

conlingencies,

2,
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REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue fiom coniracts with customers is recognized on transfer of conirol of promised goods or services to a customer at an

amount thal refiects the consideration to which the Company is xpect=d to be enfitled to in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue lowards satisfaction of a perfarmance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable
consideration) allocaled to thal perdfarmance ohligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable
consideration on account of various discounls and schemes offered by the Company as part of the conlractThis variable
consideralion is estimated based on the expected value of outflow. Revenue (net of variable consideralion) is recognized only to the
extent that it is highly probable that the amaunt will nol be subject to significant reversal when uncerainty refating to its recognition is
resalved.

The Campany does not adjust shorl-term advances received from the customer for the effects of significant financing companent if it
is expecled at the contract inception thal the pramised good or service will be transferred to the customer,

a) Sale of Goods
Revenue from sale of products is recognized when the control on the goods have been transferred to the customer. The perfarmance
abligalion in case of sale of product is satisfied at a point in time i.e., when the material is shipped to the cusiomer or on delivery to the
cuslomer, as may be specified in the contract,




b) Exportincentives
Export Incentives under various schemeas are accounted in the year of export.

c) Dividend
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the same is esiablished, which is generally when sharehoiders approve the

dividend.

d) Insurance Claims
Insurance claims are accounled for on the basis of claims admitted/expected to be admitled and to the exlenl that there is no

uncerainty in receiving the claims.
2.4 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

a) Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial stalements are presented in Indian Rupze (INR), which is campany's funclional and pressntation currency.

b) Initial Recognisation
Transactions in foreign curencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the dales of the transactions. Exchange difference

arising on foreign exchange lransaction seltied during the year are recogrnized in the Stalement of profil and loss of the year,

¢) Measurement of foreign currency items at the Balance sheet date
Manetary assels and liabilifies denominaled in foreign currencies are re-lransialed into functional currency at the:exchange rale

prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Non monelary asseis and liahilities that are measured based on a historical cost in a
foreign currency are nol re-ranslated. Exchange difierences arising out of these transaction are charged to the profit and loss,
2.5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS

a) Property, plantand equipment (PPE)
i) Recognition and measurement
Freehald land is carried at cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cosl less accumulated depreciation
and impalrment losses, if any. Coslincludes expenses directly atiributable to the acquisition of the 2ssels. The cost of an item of a
PPE comprises its purchase price including import duty, and other non-refundable taxes or levies and any directly attributable cost of
bringing the assels to its working condition of its inlended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducled in amiving at the

purchase price.

ii) Subsequent expenditure
Expenditure incurred on subslantial expansion up to the dale of commencement of commercial production are capilalized.

Subsequent cosls are included in the assel's carmying amount or recognised as a separale assel, as appropriate only when it is
probable that fulure economic benefit associaled with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The camying amount of any component accountad for as a separale assel is derecognised when replaced, All olher repairs
and maintenance are charged to profil or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

b) Capital Work-In-Frogress And Pre-Operative Expensas During Construction Period
Capital work-in progress includes expenditure directly related to construction and incidental thereto, The same is transferred or
allocated to respective Property, Plant and Equipment on their compietion / commencement of commercial production,

c) Investment Property

i) Invesiment propedy is property held either to eam rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but nol for sale in the ordinary
course of business, use in the production er supply of goods or services or for adminisirative purposes. Upon inilial recognition, an
investment propery is measured at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
The Management do=s nol expect any impairment in the value of Investment Property , hence no deprecialion have been charged in
respect of the same. :

Subssquent expenditure is capitalised to the assel's carmying amount only when it is probable thal future economic benefits associaled
with the expenditure will fiow to the Campany and the cost of the item can be measured refiably,

iif) All other repairs and mainlenance cosls are expensed when incurred.
iv) Any gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is recognised in the Stalement of Profit and Loss,

d) Intangible assels
Intangible asseis are held an the baiance sheat at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment loss if any.

2,

IMPAIRMENT OF NON- FINANGIAL ASSETS
The Company’s non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assels, are reviewed at each reporting dale to delerming

whether there is an indication of impairment, If any such indication exists, then the assel's recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assa!s thal do not generale independent cash inflows are grouped together inlo cash-generaling units (CGUs).
Each CGU repiesents the smallest group of assels that generales cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash infiows of
other assels or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less cosls to sell. Value in use is based on the
eslimated future cash fiows, discounted to their present value using a discount rale thal refiects current market assessments of time
value of money and the risks specific to the CGU.




An impaiment loss is recognised if the camying amount of an assel or CGL exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment
losses are recognised in the stalement of profit and loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of a CGU is allocaled first to
reduce the camying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assels of the
CGU on a pro rala basis,

An impairment loss in respect of assets for which impaimment loss has been recognized in prior perinds, the Company reviews at
reporling dale whelher there is any indicalion that the loss has decreased or no longer exists, An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a change in the estimales used to delermine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the exient thal the
assel's carmying amaunt does not exceed the carrying amaunt that would have been defermined, net of depreciation or amartization, if
no impairment loss had been recognized.

2.

-~

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION
Depredialion is caiculated to systemalically allocate the cost of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assel over the

estimaled useful life.

Depreciaiion is compuled on pro-rala basis with using Siraight Line Meihod (SLM) over the useful lives of the assels as estimated by
the management and is charged to the Sialement of Frofit and Loss as per the requirement of Schedule Il of the Companies Act,
2013.

The estimated usaful life of items of property, plant and equipment is mentioned below:

Assot Years

Factory Building 30 Years *
Office Premises 20 Years

Plant & Machinery 15 To 20 Years

Capex on Leashold Premises 20 Years

Fumiture and Fixtures 10 Years

Vehicles 8 Years

Other Equipment 5 Years

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimale, depreciales ilems ceriain of
property plant and equipment (as mentioned beiow) over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful lives prescribed
under Schedule |l to the Companies Act, 2013 (Schedule lll). The management believes that thess estimated useful lives are realisfic
and refiect fair approximalion of the pedod over which the assels are likely to be used.

Office Premises and Capex on Leasshold Premises are depreciated over the eslimaled useful life of 20 Years which is lower than the
life prescribed in Schedule Il

The useful fives, residual values of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment and the deprecialion methads are reviewed
at the end of each financial year. If any of these expectalions differ from previous eslimates, such change is accounled for as a
change in an accounling estimate

2.8 NON-DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract thal gives rise to a financial assat of one enlity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

I. Financial assets
a) Initial recognition and measurement
i) The Company recognizes a financial asselin its batance sheet when it becomes party to the contraciual provisions of the instrument.

All financial assels are recognised initially at fair value and for those instruments that are nol subsequently measured at FVTPL,
plus/minus transaction cosl that are atiributable to the acquisition of the financial assels.

Where the fair value of a financial ass=t at inilial recognition is different fram its transaction price, the difference between the fair value
and the transaction price is recognized as a gain or loss in the Stalement of Profit and Loss at initial recognilion if the fair value is
determined through a quoled markel price in an aclive market for an identical assat (i.e. level 1 input) or through a valualion technique
that uses dala from observabie markets (i e level 2 input).

In case the fair value is not determined using a level 1 or level 2 input as menfioned above, the difference between the fair value and
transachion price is deferad apprapriately and recognized as a gain or loss in the Stalement of Profit and Loss only to the extenl that
such gain or loss arises due to a change in factor that market participants take into account when pricing the financial asset.

i) All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assels are inifially measured at fair value. Costs of certain unquoted

equity instruments has been considered as an appropriale estimale of fair value because of a wide range of possible fair value
measurements and cost represenis the best estimale of fair value within that range.

In case of Investments in Equity instruments, at initial recogniiion , the Company, makes an imevocable election, to susbequently
measure , invesiments in equity instruments at FVTOC! or FVTPL (Refer Nate 4 & 38 for further details).
The Company makes such election on an instrument by instrument basis,

iii) Trade receivable are carred at original invoice price as the sales arangements do nol contain any significant financial component.
Purchass or sales of financial assets thal required delivery of assels within a time frame eslablished by regulalion or convention in the
markel place {regular way trades) are recognised on the trade dale, i.e., the date thal the company commils to purchase or sell the

assets,

b) Subsequent measurement:
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For subsequent measurement, the Company classifies a financial 2sset in accordance with the below criteria:
i. The Company's business model for managing the financial asset and
ii. The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assst.

Based on the above crileria, the Company classifies its financial assets into the following categories:
i. Financial assels measured at amariized cosi

il. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH)

iii. Financial assels measured at fair value thicugh profit or loss (FVTPL)

i. Financial assets measured at amortized cost:

A financial sset is measured at the amorlized cost if both the following canditions are met:

a) The Company's business model objective for managing the financial assel is to hold financial asssls in order to collect contractual
cash flows, and

b) The contractual terms of the financial ass==t give rise on specified daies to cash flows that are soiely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

This calegory applies to cazh and bank balances, trade receivables, loans and other financial assels of the Company (Refer nole 38

for further delails). Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective inferest method,

Under the effeclive interest method, the future cash receipls are exactly discounied to the initial recognition value using the effective
interest rale. The cumulative amortization using the effective inlerest method of the difference between the initial recognition amount
and the maturity amount is added to the initial recognition value (net of principal repayments, if any) of the financial asset over the
relevant perod of the financial assel to arive at the amortized cost at each reporting dale. The correspundin'g effect of the
amorlization under effective inlerest method is recognized as interest income over the relevant period of the financial asset. The same
is included under ofher income in the Statement of Profil and Loss.

The amartized cost of a financial asset is also adjusled for loss allowance, if any.

ii. Financial assots measured at FVTOCI:

a) The Company's business model ohjeclive for managing the financial asset is achieved bolh by collecting conlractual cash flows
and selling the financial assats, and

b) The conlraciual leqvis of the financial 2ss2t give rise on specified dales to cash flows that are solely paymenls of principal and
inlerest on the principal amount oulstanding.

This calegory applies to cerain investments in debt instruments. Such financial assels are subsequently measured at fair value at
each reporting dale.Fair value changes are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). However, the Company
recognizes interest income and impairment losses and its reversals in the Slalement of Profit and Loss.

On Derecognition of such financial assels, cumulalive gain or loss previously recognized in OCl is reclassified from equity to
Siatement of Frofit and Loss.

Further, Invesimenls in Equity inslruments, neither held for trading nor are conlingent consideralion under a business combination, are
recognized | at initital recognition, through irevocably election, to be subsequently measiured at FVTOCI (Refer Nolte 4 & 38 for further
delails).

Pursuant to such imevocable eleclion, subsequent changes in the fair value of such equity instruments are recognized in QCl,

However, the Company recognizes dividend income from such instruments in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the right to
receive payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount can be measurad
reliably,

On Derecognilion of such financial assels, cumulative gain or loss previcusly recognized in OCl is not reclassified from the equity to
Stalement of Profit and Loss, However, the Company may transfer such cumulative gain or lozs into retained eamings within equity.

iii. Financial assets measured at FVTPL:

A financial assalis measured at FVTPL uniess it is measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCI as explained above.This is a residual
calegory applied to all other investments of the Company excluding investmenls in subsidiary and associate companies (Refer note
38 for furiher delails). Such financial assats are subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting dale. Fair value changes are
recognized in the Sialement of Profit and Loss.

¢) Derecognition of financial assets
A financial assel (or, where applicabie, a part of a financial assst or part of a group of similar financial assels) is derecognized (i.e.

removed from the Company's balance sheel) when any of the following cccurs:

i. The contractual rights to cash flows from the financial asset expires;

ii. The Company transfers ils contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset and has substantially
transferred all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset;

iii. The Company relains the contractual rights to receive cash flows but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the
cash flows without maleral delay to one or maore recipients under a 'pass-through' arrangement (thereby substantially
transfeiring all the risks and rewards of ownasship of the financial asset);

iv. The Company neilher transfers nor reiains substantially all risk and rewards of ownership aind does not relain conlrol
over the financiai assel,




In cases where Company has neilher transferred nor refained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the financial assat, but
relains control of the financial asssl, the Company continues to recognize such financial asset to the extent of its conlinuing
involvement in the financial assat, In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability,

The financial ass2t and the associaied liability are measured on a basis that refiects the rights and obiigations thal the Comgany has

relained.

On Derecagnition of a financial assaf (excepl as mentioned in 2.8 () (b) ii above for financial assels measured at FVTOC) the
difference betwsen the canying amount and the consideration received is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

d) Reclassification
Financial assels are reclassified subssquent to their recognition, if the Company changes its business modal for managing those
financial assets. Changes in business model are made and appiied prospeclively from the reclassification dale which is the first day of
immediaiely next reporting perind following the changes in business model in accordance with principies laid down under Ind AS 109 -
Financial Instruments.

e) Investments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures:
Invesiments in Subsidiaries, Associales and Joint Venlures are carmied at cost less accumulated impairment losses if any in
accordance with option available in Ind AS 27 - Szparate Financial Slalements. Delails of Such Investments are

Where an indication of impairment exisis, the cammying amount of the investment is assessed and the carmying amount of the

investment is assessed and writlen down immediately to its recoverable amount.

On disposal of investmanls in subsidiaries, associales and joint venture, the difference between net disposal proces=ds and the
Cairying amounts are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

f) Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company apphies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognilion of
impairment loss on following financial assets and credit risk exposure:
- Financial assels that are debt instruments, and are measured at amorised Cost e g., loan, debt security, deposits, and bank
batance.
- Trade Recejvables
The company follows ‘simpiified approach’ for recogaition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivabies which do fol conlain a
significant financing companent,

The application simpiified approach doss not require the company 1o track change in risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting dale, right from its initial recognition, The company uses a provision matrix to
delenming impaimment loss allowance on the porifolio of trade receivable. The provision malrix based on its historically ohserved
default rates aver the expecied life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking eslimates. At every reparling date,
historically abserved default rate updated and change In the forward looking eslimates are analysed,

Il. Financial Liabiiities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by an enlity are classified as either financial liability or as equity in accordance with substance of
the coniraciual arrangements and the definition of a financial liability and an equity instrument,

a) Equity instruments:
An equity instrumenis is any conlact the evidences a residual interest in the assels of an entity afler deducting all of its liabilifies,
Equity instrumenls issued by an enlity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs,

b) Initial recognition and measurement:
Financial liabilifies are measured initially at amadised cost , unless at initial recognition they are measured at fair value through Profit
& Loss ("FVTPL"). in case of borrowings , trade and olher payables , are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently, these
liabiiities are held at amartised cost using the efective interest method,

c) Derecognition X
A financial liabiiity is derecognized when the obligation under the liabiiity is discharged or cancelled or expires .\When an exisling
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially difierent terms, or the terms of an existing liahility are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
the new liabiiity. The difference in the respective camying amounts is recognised in the stalement of Prafit and Loss.

d) Offsetiing Financial Instruments
Financial 2ssets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to
offsel the recognised amounts and there is an infenfion to seflie on a net basis to reafise the assat and sefile the liahility
simultaneously.




2.9 INVENTORIES
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1) Raw Material and Packing Material
Raw Materials and packing malerial are caried at lower of cost and net realizable value.

However, malerials and other items held for use in production of inventories are not writlen down below cost if the finished
goads in which they will be incorpurated are expectad to be sold at or above cost.

The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an item-by item basis.

Net reaiizable value is the eslimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimaled cost of compietion and
eslimaled cosls necessary to make the sale.

In determining the cost of raw malerials and packing materials First in First Out Meihod (FIFO) is used. Cosl of inventory comprises all
costs of purchase, duties, tares (other than those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in
bringing the invenlory to their present location and condition.

ii) Work in Progress
Work-in-progress is valued at input malerial cost plus conversion cost as applicable,

ii) Finished Goods
Finished goods are valued at the lower of net realisable value and cost (including prime cost, non-refundable taxes and duties and
other averheads incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition), compuled an estimated cost,

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Non-cument assets or dispesal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally
thiough a sale lransaction rather than through conlinuing use. Such assets or disposal groups are classified only when
both the conditions are satisfied:

i. The sale is highly probable, and

ii. The asset or disposal group is available for immediale saie in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual
and customary for sale of such assets,

Management must be commitied o the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a compieled sale within one year
from the dale of classification as held for sale, and aclions required to complele the pian of sale should indicate thal it is unlikely that
significant changes to the plan will be made or thal the plan will be withdrawn.

Noncurrent assels or dispesal group are presented separalely from the other assels in the balance sheet. The fiabilifies of
a disposal group classified as held for sale are presented separaiely from other liabilities in the balance sheet,

Upan Classification Non- current assels classified as heid for sale are measured at lhe lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell.

Non-cument assals are nol depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale.

BORROWING COSTS
Borrowing Costs that are inferest and other costs that the company incurs in connection with the barrowings of funds and is measired

with reference to the effeclive interest rate applicable to the respective borrowing. Borrowing cosls include interest cost measured at
EIR and exchange difference arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjusiment to the inlerest

cosl,

Borrowing Cos!s that are atlribulable to the acquisition or conslruction of qualifying assels are capilalised as part of the cost of such
assels, wherever applicable, till the assels are ready for their intended use. Such capitaiisation is done only when it is probable that
the assel will result in future economic benefits and the costs can be measured reliably. Capitalisation of borrowing cost is suspended
and charged to stalement when aclive development is intermupted Capilalisation of borrowing costs commences when all the following
condilions are salisfied:

1. Expenditure for the acquisilion, cansiniction or praduction of a qualifying asset is being incurred;

ii. Borrowing cos!s are being incurred; and

iii. Activities thal are necessary to prepars the asset for its intended use are in progress,

A qualifying 2ssel is one which necessarily takes substanlial period to gel ready for intended use. All olher borowing costs are
charged to revenue arcount.

2.12 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Short term employee benefit obligations
Liahilities for wages, salaries, compensated absences inchuding non-monelary benefits that are expecied to be settled wholly within 12

monihs afier the end of the period in which the employees render the reialed services are recognised in respect of employees'
services up to the end of lhe reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are to be
sellled, The liabililies are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Post-employment obligations

The Company operales the following post-employment schemes:

A, Defined benefit plans such as Graluity; and
B. Defined contribution plan such as Provident Fund

Gratuity Obligations

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is presant value of the defined benefit
obiigation at the end of the reparting period lesz the fair value of plan assels, The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by
aciuaries using the projected unit credit methad.
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The present value of the defined benefit obligalicns is determined by discounting the estimaled future cash outfiows by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporing periad on governiment bonds that have terms approximaling to the terms of the related
obiigalion.

The netinterest cost is calculaled by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of
plan assels. This costis included in employee benefit expenses in the slatement of profit and less,

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjusiments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the
pedod in which they accur, direclly in other comprehensive income. They are included in relained eamings in the slalement of
changes in equity and in the balance shest,

Changes in present value of the defined benefit obiigalion resulting from plan amendment or curlailments are recognised Immedialely
in profit or loss as past service cost,

Defined Contribution Plans

The Campany pays provident fund contibutions to publicly administered funds as per the local regulations. The Cormpany has no
further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The conlributions are accounled for as defined coniribution plans
and the conbiibutions are recognised as employee benefit expenses when they are due, Prepaid contiibutions are recagnised as an
asselto the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payment is available.

Share-based Payments

Equity-s=ifled share-based payments to empioyees thal are granled are measured by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant daie. The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity seilied share-based paymenls is expensed
on a slraight-ling basis over the vesting perind, based on the Company's eslimale of equity instruments that will eventually vest,
with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each periad, the enlity revises its eslimales of the number of opliens that
are expecled to vest based on the vesling conditions, It recognizes the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in
statement of profit and loss, with a corresponding adjustiment to equity,

ACCOUNTING FOR TAXES ON INCOME
Income Taxes
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current perod's taxabie income based on the applicable

income tax rale for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities atiributable to temporary differences
and o unused tax losses,

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the lax laws enacted or substantively enacied at the end of the reporling
period Le. as per the provisions of the income Tax Act, 1961, as amended from time to time. Management periodically evaluales
posilions taken in tax relumns with respect to situations in which appiicabie tax regulation is subject to inlerpretalion, It establishes

provisions where apprapriale on the basis of amounts expercied to be paid to the tax autharilies.

Current income tax assels and liabiiities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxalion
authorilies, based on the rates and tax laws enacled or substantively enacted, at the reparling date in the country where the Company
operales and generales tazable income. Cument tax items are recognised in coreiation to the underlying transaction either in OCi or
directly in equity.

Current lax assals and liabililies are offset only if, the Company :
i) has legally enforcaabie right to set off the recognised amounts; and
i) Intends either to selfle on a nel basis, or to realise the ass2l and settle the liability simuftaneously,

Deferred Taxes
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences belween the carrying amounls of the assels and liabilities for financial
reporling purposes and the corresponding amounls used for laxalion purpose

Deferred lax assels are recognised for unused lax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences only if it is
probable that future taxable profils will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax assels are reviewed at sach
reporling dale and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer prabable thal the related tax benefits will be realised; such redurtions
are reversed when the probabiiity of future taxable profits improves Unrecognised deferred lax assels are reassessed at each
reporling date and recgonised to the exlent that it has become prabable that future taxable profits will be available against which they
can be used.

Deferred lax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rales
enacled or substanlially enacted at the repoding dale,

Deferred Tax Assels and Liabilities are offsel when there is a legally enfarceable right to offset current tax assels and liabilities and
when the deferred lax balances relale to the same taxalion autharily. Gurent tax assels and tax lizbiiities are offset where the
Company has a legally enforceabie right to offset and intends either to seftle on a nel basis, or to reaiise the asset and sallle the
liability simultaneausly,

Current and Deferred Tax is recognised in the Stalement of Profit and Loss, except to the extenl that it refales to items recognised in
ather comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respeclively.

Any tax credit including MAT credit available is recognised as Defered Tax to the extent (hat it is probable thal future taxable profit will
be available against which the unused tax credits can be utilised. The said assel is created by way of credit to the Stalement of Profit
and Loss and shown under the head deferred tax assat

The carmying amount of Deferred Tax Assels is reviewed at each reporting dale and reducad to the axtent that it is no longer prabable
thal sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the Deferred Tax Assal to be utilised, Unrecognised Deferred Tax
Assels are re-gssessed at each reporing dale and are recognised o the extenl that it has become probable that future laxab
will allow the deferred tax assel to be recoverad.




Deferred tax assels and liahilities are offset only if, the Company :

i) has legally enfarcaable right to set off the recognized amounts; and

ii) the deferred lax assels and the defered tax liahilities refale to income tares levied by the same taxalion authority on the same
taxahle entity.

a) Provisions
Frovisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or construclive) as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefils will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable eslimale can be made
of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an
insurance contracl, the reimbursement is recognised as a separale assal, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense reialing fo a provision is presented in the Slalement of Profit and Less net of any reimbursement. Provisions are not
recognis=d for future operating losses,

Frovisions are messured at the present value of Mmanagement’s besl estimale of the expenditure required to seftle the present
obiigation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to delermine the present value is a pre-tax rale that refiects
current markel assessmenls of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increasa in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as inlerest expense,

b) Contingent Liability
Conlingent Liability is disclosed in the case of:
i. A present obligation arising from the past evenls, when it is not prabable that an outflow of resources will be required to seltle the
abligation;
ii. A pres=nt obligation arising from the past evenls, when no reliable estimate is possible;
fii. A possible obligalion arising from the past events, uniess the probability of outflow of resources is remole,

2.14 LEASES

The determinalion of whether an arrangement is (or conlains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception
of the lease. The amangement is, or conlains, a lease if fulfiliment of the amrangement is dependent on the use of a specific assai or

assels and the arrangement conveys a right to use the assat or assels, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Company as a Lessee

a) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assels at the commencement dale of the lease (i-e. the date the underlying asset
is available for use), Right-of-use assels are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of leasa liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assels includes the amount of
lease liabilities recognised, initial direct cosls incurred, and leass payments made at or before the cormmencement date
less any lease incenlives received. Right-of-use assels are deprecialed on a slraight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assels.

In respect of Leasehald Land , the Management does riot expect any impaiment hence no deprecialion have been
charged in respect the same.

If awnership of the leased assal transfers to the Company at the end of lhe leass term or the cost reflects the exercise of
a purchase oplion, deprecialion is caiculated using the estimated useful life of the asset,

The right-of-use assels are also subject to impaimment. Refer to nole 2.6 above for accounting policies on impairment of
nunfinancial assels,

b) Lease liabilities
At lhe commencement dale of the lease, the Comparny recognises lease liabiliies measured at the present value of lease
paymenis to be made over the leass term. The lease payments primarily comprise of fixed payments.

In calculating the pre sent value of leases payments, the Group uses its incremental borowing rate at the leass
commencement date because the inlerest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
dale. the amount of lease liabilities is increased to refiect the accrelion of interest and reduced for the lease paymenls
made,

c) Short-term leases and leases of low value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of office spaces and cerlain
equipmeni (i e those leases thal have a leass term of 12 months or less from the cormmencement dale and do not
contain a purchase option). It alse applies the lease of low-value assels recogrition exemplion to leases of office
equipment that are considered to be low value, Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assals are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the leasa term,




ii) Company as a Lessor
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an assel are classified as

operaling leases. Rental income from operaling leass is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease,

Leases are classified as Finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company to the
lessea. Amounls due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company's net investment in the leases.
Finance lease income is allacated to accounling perinds so as to reflect a conslant periodic rale of retun on the net inve siment
oulstanding in respect of the lease,

2.15 EARNING PER SHARE
a) Basic Eamnings Per Share
Basic Eamings Per Share is calculated by dividing the profit atlibutable to owners of the Campany by the weighted average number

of equity shares oulstanding during the period. Eamings considered in ascerlaining the company's gamings per share is the net profit
for the period afier deducting preference dividends, if any, and any atiributable disiribution tax therelo for the period.

b) Diluted Earnings Per Share
Diluted Eamings Per Share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic &arnings per share to take into account the afler
income tax effect of inlerest and olher financing costs associaled with dilutive polential equity shares and the weighled average

numiber of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive polential equity shares.

2.16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash Flows are reporied using the indirect methad, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash
nature, any deferals or accruals of past or futyre operaling cash receipls or payments and item of income or expenses associaled
with investing or financing Czsh Fiows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing aclivities of the Company are
segregaled,

Cash and cash equivaienis for the purpese of Cash Flow Sialement comprise cash and cheques in hand, bank baiances, demand

deposits with banks where the original malurity is three manihs or less and olher short term highly liquid investments net of bank

overdrafls which are repayable on demand as these form an integral part of the Company’s cash management,

2.17 DIVIDEND
The Company recagnises a liability for dividends to equity hoiders of the Gornmpany when the dividend is authorised and the dividend is
no longer at the discrelion of the Company. As per the corporale laws in India, a dividend is authorised when it is approved by the
shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised direclly in equity.

ROUNDING OFF
All amounts disclosed in the financial stalements and noles have beean rounded off to the nearest rupees, uniess otherwise slaied,
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EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
Cerlain occasions, the size, type orincidence of an item of incame or expense, perlaining to the ordinary aclivilies of the Cormpany is

such that its disclosure improves the undersianding of the performance of the Company, such income or expense is classified as an
exceplional item and accordingly, disciosed in the noles accompanying to the financial stalements.

2.20 OPERATING CYCLE
All 25s#ls and liabilities have be=n classified as currenl or non-current as per each Company's normal aperaling cycle and other
criteria set out in the Schedule Il to the Act

2.21 SEGMENT REPORTING
As the Campany has only one primary business activity, Segment reporting is not applicable,

2.22 RECENT PRONOUNCEMENT
Indian Accouting Standards; .
The Minisiry of Comarate Affairs (MCA) has issued the Companies (Indian Accounling Standards) Amendinment Rules, 2025, which
amend Ind AS 21, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rales. These amendmenls are effeclive for annual reporling periods
beginning on or after 1st April 2025,
The Compaity has evalualed these amendments and the same will not have any impact on its financial stalements,




FINOCLEAN SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amount in Rupees lakhs, unfess otherwise stated)

NOTE 3: PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENTS
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FINOCLEAN SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amount in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 4: FINANCIAL ASSETS - INVESTMENTS
FINANCIAL ASSETS - INVESTMENTS (NON CURRENT)

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particulars _ No. of Units |Amount No. of Units |Amount
Investments in Debt oriented liquid mutual funds (Unquoted and
fully paid up)
Investments in mutual funds (at fair value through profit and
loss) 1229.46 54.65 1,458.36 60.12
Total 54.65 60.12
Aggregate Amount Of Quoted Investment - At Cost 50.58 60.00
Aggregate Amount Of Quoted Investment - At Market Value 54.65 60.12




FINOCLEAN SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amount in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 5: FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS (NON-CURRENT)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

[Unsecured, considered good]

Security deposits 0.20 -
Total 0.20 -
NOTE 6: INCOME TAX
A. COMPONENTS OF INCOME TAX EXPENSE

As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

l. Tax expense recognised in statement of profit & loss
Current tax expense:

Current tax on profit for the year

(Excess) / Short Provision of Earlier Years

Sub-Total - -
Deferred tax expense:
Deferred tax expenses 0.01 0.60
Sub-Total 0.01 0.60
Total 0.01 0.60
Il. Tax expense recognized in other comprehensive income
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Total - -
B. RECONCILIATION OF EFFECTIVE TAX RATES
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025| March 31, 2024
Profit/(loss) before tax (1.14) (0.09)
Enacted Income Tax Rate in India 17.16% 17.16%
Income Tax expense calculated at enacted corporate tax rate (0.20) (0.02)
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in future in determining taxabie profit - -
Effect of expenses that are deduiclible in determining taxable profit - -
Short / (Excess) Deferred tax expense created for the current year - (0.58)
Short / (Excess) Deferred tax expense created for the previous year 0.19 -
Net tax expense (0.01) (0.60)
Tax expense recognixed in P&L (0.01) (0.60)
Effective tax rate for the year 0.52% 663.07%




C. MOVEMENT IN DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

Particular

Net deferred
tax asset /
(liabilities)

as on 1st April,
2024

Recognised in
profit and loss

Recognised in
other
comprehensive
income

Property, plant and equipment (0.44) (0.15)
Fair Valuation of Financial Instruments (0.03) (0.87)
Preliminary Expenses 0.48 (0.22)
Carried forward income tax losses 0.61 1.04
Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) 0.60 0.01 -
Particular Net deferred Recognised in Recognised in
tax asset / profit and loss other
(liabilities) comprehensive
as on 1st April, income
2023
Property, plant and equipment (0.44)
Fair Valuation of Financial Instruments (0.03)
Preliminary Expenses 0.46
Carried forward income tax losses 0.61
Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) - 0.60 -
D. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
Particulars goa fisal

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Deferred Tax Assets
Carried forward income tax losses

1.66 0.61
Preliminary Expenses 0.23 0.48
Total 1.89 1.07

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Property, Plant and Equipment 0.59 0.44
Fair Valuation of Financial Instruments 0.70 0.03
Total 1.29 0.48
NET DEFERRED TAX ASSETS / (LIABILITIES) 0.60 0.60




FINOCLEAN SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amount in Rupees lakhs, uniess otherwise stated)

NOTE: 7 INVENTORIES

{ As at As at
Carlicuigrs March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
(As taken, valued and certified by the management)
Raw Material 0.89 0.46
Finished Goods 1.21 0.05
Total 2.10 0.52
Inventories are valued at lower of cost or nel realizable value Refer note 2.8 of Significant Accounting Policies
NOTE 8: FINANCIAL ASSETS - TRADE RECEIVABLES
2 As at As at
icul
Berdlcilar March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered g 8.13 2.43
Less: Allowances for exp d credit losses - -
8.13 2.43
Trade receivables - Credit Impaired = =
Lzsz: Allowances for expected credit losses - -
TOTAL 8.13 2.43




FINOCLEAN SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amount in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule:

Current but not due

Less: Allowances for Doubtful frade Receivables
Total Trade Receivables

Particulars Current but notdue | Less than 6 & months =1 VEan 12 yeure e More than 3 Total
months years

As at 31st March 2025

Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered good - B.13 - - - - 8.13
Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - . -
Undisputed Trade receivable — credit impaired - - - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - - - - - - “
Disputed Trade receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - Z
Disputed Trade receivables — credit impaired - - = ] - 9 =
TOTAL - 8.13 - - - - 8.13
Less: Allowances for Doubtful trade Receivables =
Total Trade Receivables 8.13

Current but not due
e Ll current bt not due | Fless thaiis 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Margihans e
months years

As at 31st March 2025

Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered goed - 2.43 = - - - 243
Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk - - = = - - -
Undisputed Trade receivable — credit impaired - - - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - - s - = - »
Disputed Trade receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - =
Disputed Trade receivables — credit impaired - = “ = 5 - ”
TOTAL - 2.43 - - - - 2.43

2.43
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amount in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 9: FINANCIAL ASSETS - CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

Particulars goat fogt
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balances with Banks in Current Accounts 3.00 4.70
Cash In Hand 2.35 0.47
TOTAL 5.34 517
NOTE 10: OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Particulars Agat ot
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance with Government Authorities 4.34 427
Deposit 1.39 1.60
TOTAL 5.72 5.87

CKTOEDH

*|  MEWBERSHIPNo,
101750




FINOCLEAN SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Al amount in Rupees fakhs, uniess otherwise statad)

NOTE 11: EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

1 As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Authorised
10,00,000 (10,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 /- each 100.00 100.00
TOTAL AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL 100.00 100.00
Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up
10,00,000 (10,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 100.00 100.00
TOTAL ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL 100.00 100.00
a) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares for the period ended:
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particulars
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Shaies at the beginning 10,00,000.00 100.00
Add: !ssue of Shares - - 10,00,000.00 100.00
253! Shares bought back during the year - - - -
Shares at the end 10,00,000.00 100.00 10,00,000.00 100.0?]

b) Rights, Preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The company has cne class of equity shares having a face value Rs. 10 /- per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vole per share held. In the event of

liquidalion, the equity sharehoiders will be enti

ted to recsive any of the remaining ass

shareholders, after distibution of all the preferential amounls, However no such preferential amount exist currently.

¢) Details of Shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the company

2l of the company in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Name of the Shareholder

No. of Shares Y No. of Shares %e
Fineotex Chemical Limited* 10,00,000 100% 10,00,000 100%

* Included beneficial holding of 1 shares heid by its nominea.
d) Details of Shares held by Holding Company
Out of the above equity shares issued by the company, shares held by the holding company:
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Fineotex Chemical Limited (Holding Company)

10,00.000 (10,00,000) equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up 100.00 100.00
TOTAL AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL 100.00 100.00
e) Details of Shares held by Promoters as at the end of the year

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Promoter name No. of Shares % of Total Shares | No, of Shares | % of Total Shares
Fineotex Chemical Limiled 10,000,000 1004 10,00,000 100%
Total 10,00,000 10,00,000




FINOCLEAN SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amount in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

A. Equity Share Capital
As at 31 March, 2025

Balance at the beginning of the current reporting period No. of Shares Amount

As at 31 March 2024 10,00,000.00 100.00
Add: issue during the year

As at 31 March 2025 10,00,000.00 10,00,000.00

NOTE 12: OTHER EQUITY

Particulars Reta!ned Total
Earnings

Profit for the period 0.51 0.51
Other comprehensive income

- Remeasurements gains / (loss) on defined benefit plans - -
Company incorporation / share issue expenses (2.28) (2.28)
As at March 31, 2024 (1.77) (1.77)
Profit for the Year (1.13) (1.13)
Other comprehensive income

- Remeasurements gains / (loss) on defined benefit plans - -
Company incorporation / share issue expenses - -
As at March 31, 2025 (1.13) (1.13)
Total (2.90) (2.90)

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our audit report of even date.




FINOCLEAN SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amount in Rupess lakhs, unless ofherwise staled)

NOTE 13: FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - TRADE PAYABLES

Particulars

Asat
March 31, 2025

As at
-March 31, 2024

Total outstanding duss of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(Refer Nole below)

Tolal outsianding dues of credilors other than micre enterprises and

simall enterprises - relaled parties (Refer Note below) 1.01 -
TOTAL 1.01 -
Note:

The idenification of Micro and Small Enterprisss is basad on the Managemenl's knowledge of their status. Disclosure
is based on the information available with the Company regarding the slalus of the suppliers as defined under "The
Micro, Small and Madium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act).

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

(i) Dues remaining unpaid to any suppiier Principal

(i) Inter=st on the above

(i) Amount of inferest paid in terms of seclion 16 of the MSMED Act,
2006, alongwith the amount of the payment made to the supplier
beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

(iv) Amount of inierest accrued and remaining unpaid

(v) Amaount of further interest remaining due and payabie even in the
succesding years, until such date when the interest dues as above
are aclually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disaliowance as a deductible expenditure under saction 23 of
MSMED Act, 2006 )

Total

Trade Payabies Ageing Schedule:
As at 31st March 2025

Particuiars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years MO;Z;?:" 3

Amounts in Rs

~ Amounts in Rs

Amounis in Rs

Amounts in Rs

Amounts in Rs

Total oulstanding dues of micro enlerprises and small enterprises

Tolal outsianding dues of crediiors other than micro enlerpris=s and 101 4 | i 1.07
small enterprises ) :
Disputed dues of micio enlerprises and small enlerprises 5 - 4
Disputed dues of creditors olher than micro enlerprises and small | i il
enterprises

1.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.01




NOTE 14. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Statutory Liabilities 0.08 0.17
TOTAL 0.08 0.17
NOTE 15: PROVISIONS (CURRENT)

As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Other Provisions
Provision for Expenses

0.78

0.15

TOTAL

0.78

0.15
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amount in Rupees lakhs, uniess otherwise siated)

NOTE 16: REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars

Year Ended
March 31,2025

Year Ended
March 31,2024

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Particulars

March 31,2025

Sale of Goods 9.96 2.08
Total Sale 9.96 2.06
NOTE 17: OTHER INCOME

Year Ended Year Ended

March 31,2024

Net gain arising on financial assels measured at FVTPL* 4.53 0.12
Finance Income IND AS 0.09 -
Miscellaneous Income 0.01 -
TOTAL 4.63 0.12
* Includes gain on sale of financial assels measured at FVTPL for 0.59 lakh (Previous year - NIL)
NOTE 18: COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars

March 31,2025

March 31,2024

Raw materials consumed

Particulars

March 31,2025

Opening Stock 0.46 -
Add: Purchase of Raw Material 3.41 1.44
Less: Closing stock 0.8 0.46
TOTAL 2.98 0.98
NOTE 19: CHANGE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS

Year Ended Year Ended

March 31,2024

Opening Stocks :

Finished Goods 0.05 -
Less : Closing Stocks :

Finished Goods 1.21 0.05
NET CHANGE IN INVENTORIES (1.15) {0.05)

NOTE 20: Depreciation and Amortization

Inventories are valued at fower of cost or net realizable value.Refer nole 2.9 of Significant Accounting Policies

Particulaes Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Refer Nole 3) 1.64 0.02
[ ToTAL 1.64 0.02




NOTE 21: OTHER EXPENSES

Partlonlar Year Ended Year Ended
it March 31,2025 | March 31,2024

Rent, Rales and Taxes 3.00 0.25
Labour Charges 5.74 0.45
Electricily Expenses 1.20 0.15
Waler Chargas 0.60 0.07
Profeszional fees 0.38 0.18
Prepaid Lease Rental 0.10 -
Transport Charges 0.12 0.03
Payment to Auditors

- For Statutory Audit 0.55 0.15

- For taxalion mallers 0.36 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 0.21 0.05
TOTAL 12.27 1.32




FINOCLEAN SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amount in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 22: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

Parioin e As at As at March
March 31, 2025 31, 2024

Income tax (AY 2024-25) 0.08 .

Total 0.08 -
NOTE:23 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Partiotlare Year Ended Year Ended

; March 31,2025 March 31,2024

Net profit attributable to equity shareholders -1.13 0.51
Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares for of face value Rs. 10/- each

Basic 10,00,000 2,54,098
| Earnings Per Share - Basic & Diluted (0.11) 0.20

NOTE 24: CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company's objective for Capital Management is to maximise shareholder value, safeguard business continuity, and
support the growth of the Company. Capital includes, Equity Capital, Securities Premium and other reserves and surplus
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. The Company determines the capital requirement based on annual
operating plans and long term and strategic investment and capital expenditure plans. The funding requirements are met
through a mix of equity, operating cash flows generated and debt. The operating management, supervised by the Board of
Directors of the Company regularly monitors its key gearing ratios and other financials parameters and takes corrective
actions wherever necessary. The relevant quantitative information on the aforesaid parameters are disclosed in these
financial statements.

The company monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio :

Particlie Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2025 March 31,2024

Interest bearing financial liabilities = >
Interest free financial liabilities - -
Less : Cash and Cash Equivalents 5.34 5.17
Adjusted Net Debt (5.34) (5.17)
Total Equity 97.10 98.23
Adjusted Equity 97.10 98.23
Net Debt to Equity Ratio* ! NA NA
* Not reported since the ratio is negative.




FINOCLEAN SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amount in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 25: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CLASSIFICATION AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

(a)

(b)

Financial instruments by category

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as at year end is as follows:

Particulars faat £zt
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Financial Assets
Measured at fair value through profit and loss
Investment in mutual funds 54.65 60.12
Measured at Amortised Cost
Trade Receivables 8.13 243
Cash & Cash Equivalents 5.34 5.17
Other financial assets 0.20
Total 68.34 67.72
Financial Liabilities
Measured at Amortised Cost
Trade Payable ‘ 1.01 -
Total 1.01 -

Fair valuation of financial assets and liabilities with short term maturities is considered as approximate to
respeclive carrying amount due to the short term maturities of these instruments,

Fair Value Hierarchy

The Fair Value Hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation technigues that are used to measure fair value that
are either observable or unobservable and consist of the following three levels:

Level 1 - Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in aclive markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs are other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the assets or
liabilities, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 - Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The Financial Instruments included in Level 2 of fair value hierarchy have been valued using quotes available
for similar assets and liabilities in the active market.

For Assets and Liabilities which are measured at Fair Values as at the Balance Sheet date, the classification
of fair value calculations by category is summarized below:




Particular SHI0 gaal
o it March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Financial Assets
Level 1
Investments in quoted equity shares - -
Investments in quoted mutual fund units 54.65 60.12
Level 2
Security Deposit Given 1.39 1.60
Total 56.04 61.72

Measurement of Fair Values :

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

- The fair values of investment in shares is the share price quoted on recognised stock exchange as on the
reporting date of balance sheet

- The fair values of investment in mutual fund is the N.A.V as on the reporting date of balance sheet

- The fair values of interest free security deposit given / accepted is estimated by discounting cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risks and remaining maturities, Management
regularly assesses a range of reasonably possible alternatives for those significant observable inputs and
determines their impact on the total fair value




FINOCLEAN SPECIALITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Al armowunt in Rupees lakhs, unfess otherwize stated)

NOTE:26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has a fornal Risk Managamenl (RM) framework, which has arown and refined over @ perind of time as the busines oz are
becoming more complex and increasingly facing varicus challenges acioss the globe, The Company has put in piace a risk management
framework in fine with its vision, missian and business stategy. The delails of differsnt types of risk and managemenl policy to addioss these
risks are lisled beiow:

(a) Market Risk:-

Market risk is the risk of loss of future sarings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change in the piice of a financial
instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of chang=s in the inler=st rales, foreign currency #xchangs rates, equity
prices and ofher market changes that aifect market risk sansilive insteuments, Markat risk is aliributable to all markel risk sensilive financial
instrumenils including investments and deposits | forsigin curency receivables, payables and loans and borrowings. The objsctive of markel risk
sive sxposure in our foreign currency revenues and costs

manag=ient is to avaid 20

(a)(i) Market Risk - Price Risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value of & financial instrument will flacluale due te char 1ge in markel traded price,
Exposer to Price Risk

Other price risk arise from financial 355215 such as investments in equity inslruments and mutual funds disclosed balow

The Company does nol make any deposit with the banks as Maigin micoey against the burowing Facility. provided by the baiks, Deposit is
Made in fised rals instument. In veiw of this it is nol sus plible to market price risk, arising frum changes in inlerest rales or market yields
which may impact the reiurn and value of the inve siment,

: As at As at
Ropteula March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Investmenls in Quoted Equity Shares - =
Investments in Quoted Mutual Furds 5485 60.12
Total 54,65 60.12

Sensitivity analysis to Market Risk - Price Risk {Securiiies)

The company is mainly =:posed to price risk arising mainly from investients in equity instruments and mutual funds recgonis=d at FVTPL. A
sensitivity analysis demanstialing the impact of Change in market prices of thess instruments from the prices &« ishing as at the re ng dale is
given beiow. A sensitivity of 10% repe fment of reascnably possible change in equity pricos

onls management's 2

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
10% Increasa 10% Decrease 10% Increase 10% Decrease
Equity Shaies T i i 1
Mutual Furds 5.47 (5.47) 6.01 {6.01)
Total 5.47 (5.47) 6.01 (6.01)

{a){ii) Market Risk - Interest Rate Risk

Interest rale risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash fiows of a financial insteament will fluetuste becaise of changes in markel inlersst
rales. The Company esposure to the risk of Chang=s in market inlerest rales relatas primatily to the Company's lorig-term debt obligations with
floating interest rales (if appiicable).

Inferest rals sensitivity

Company doss nol have any borowings herce no risk is anficipatad on account of inlerest rate chanoss




{a)in} Market Risk - Currency Risk

The company is having import and exports as well. Accordingly the company is exposed to curtency risk on account of its kade payables and
lrade receivabies in fureign cumrency. The functicnal curency of the company is Indian Rups=s. The Company follows a natural hedge driven
currency risk mitigalion pelicy i the exlent possible . The e:posed Foreign currency is not subslanlial to the op=tation of company

Exposure to Currency risk
Company does not have any foreign curency receivable or payable hence it is not suspectible to any currency risk

(b) Credit Risk
Credit Risk is the risk of financial loss to the Corpany if a customer or counlerparly to a financial instrument fails 1o meel its conlractual
chligations, and arises principally from the Company's recsivabies fram custar ners. The carrying amount of Financial Assels repies=nls the
mazinum credit &«posure,

Trade Receivables

The Company has established a cradit poiicy under which esch new cuslomer is analysed individually for creditworthiess before the payment
and delivery terms and condilions are offered. The Comipany's review inclures edernal relings, if they are available, financial statemeants,
induslry information, business intelligence and in some cases bank refersnces.,

Trade Recsivables of the Company are typically uns=scured escept to the salenl of the seciirity deposits recaived from the eusiomers or
financial guaraniscs piovided by the market Grgaiiizeis in the business. Credit Risk is managad threugh credit approvals and periadic
maritoring of the creditworthiness of cusltamers to which the Corr any grants credit lerms in the normal course of business. The Comgany
parfuins ongoing credil evaluations of its customers' financial condilion and moritors the creditworthiness of its customers to which it granls
credit lerms in the normal course of business,




The foliowing table gives delails in respect of peicentage of revenue gensraled fram lop thiee customers of the Company wherein revenue for
each of them exc==ds 10 percent of Company's revenue lrom operalicns,

P No of Year ended March 31, 2025
Cuslomers Rs in lakhs %
Revenue from ton customers 3 G.85 100.00%
: No of Year ended March 31, 2024
Particulars Gilstoniers Rs in lakhs T m
Revenue from fop cuslomers 1 2.06 | 100,

Other Financial Assats

The company mainiains exposure in Cash and Cash equivalents and Bank deposits with barks, Equity Shares of co-operalive banks, The
Campany has diversified portfolio of investiment with various number of counterpartins which has goods credit ratings, ge
hence the risk is reduced. Individual risk limits set for each counlerparty based on financial pesition, eredit raling and post experience. Credit
limils and concentration of 2xposures are aclively mosilored by the Company.

ds repitalion and

Expected credit loss on financial assets other than trade receivable:

With regards to all financial 2sscts with contactual cash flows other than rads r=ceivable, management believes thoss to be high quality
assels with negiigible credit risk. The manag s that the parlies fram whom these financial sssols are recoverable, have sliang
capacity to mest the obligaiions and wheie the risk of ult is negligible and accordingly no provision for expecled credit loss has basn
picvided on such financial 2sse!s. Break up of financial zssets other than trade receivables have bean disclosed on balance shest

imian] beliey

The Company's maximum =:posure to credil risk as at 31st March, 2025, is the carrying value of each class of financial acsols

{c) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity Risk is the risk that the Company will face in

ing its obligalion =sociated with its financial liabiiities that are sellled by delivering
cash or anolher financial zsset. The Company's approach in managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient
liquidity to mis=! its liabililies when due, under both noimal and strossed conditions, without incurring unacceplable lossos or rishing damags to
the Company's reputaiion. Any short tenn surplus cash generai=d, over and ahove the amount required for working capilal managemenl and
other operational requirements is rotained as Cash and Cash Equivatents (fo the exdlent reqiired).

Exposure to Liquidity Risk

st with board of ditectors which are appropriate risk management framework for short |
uale cash flows and banking facilities,

The responsibility of liquidity risk managemenl

medium and long teom liquidity messures with 2

The folluwing table shows the malurity analysis of the Company's Financial Liabiiities based on conliactually agieed undiscounted cash flows
along with its caiying valus as at the Baiancs Shest Dale

The table beiow sumimansos the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities:

As at March 31, 2025
Particulars Less than 12 More than 12
months months
Long Teirn Burowings - 5
Trade Payabies 1.01 -
TOTAL 1.01 -

el
MENBERSHIP NO.
40769
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A

B

C  Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives:

NOTE 27: RELATED PARTY

As per Ind AS 24, 'Related Party Disciosures’, disclosure of transactions with the relaled parties are given below;

List of related parties and Relationship

Enterprises havin
1 Fineolex Chemcal

g controf ;-
Limiled (Hoiding Company)

Enterprise in which Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives have significant Influence :
1 FSPL Speciaiilies Privale Limited

a. Executive Direclors :
1 Surendra Tibrewala

D

2 Sanjay Tibrew=ala

Transaclion with Related Parties

Transaction durin

g the year

Entities In which Key Management

Heolding
Personnel or its relatives are
i\ 1]
Particulars Companles, '::;:c;:“' LG aani fsey Nanagement Eereonna intarested / Relative of Key L
: Management Personngl
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-28 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Deposit Received
FSPL Specialiies Private Linitad - - - ~ - 1.50 ; 150
Tolal - - - - - 1.50 - 1.50
Expensas
Waler Charges = - = s 0.60 0.97 -
Faviory Rent - - - - 3.27 0.30 -
El=cticity Charges i ~ S - 1.20 0.15 =
- - - - 5.07 0.51 0.51
LOAN TAKEN
Fineoles Chencal Limited 0.20 3.47 - - - - - 2407
Total 0.20 3.07 5 . . . 4 3.07
LOAN REPAID
Fineales, Chemigal Limiled 0.20 3.07 - = . s - 3o
Total 0.20 3.07 - - = - - 3.07
ISSUE OF SHARES
Fineatar Chemical Limiled z 100.00 - - - - - 100,00
Total - 100.00 - - - - - 100 00
Outstanding balances as on reporting date
R i Masscomg
Particulars Companies, J:::l:l:::lti and Joinl Key Management Personnel interested / Relative of Key Tatal
1 Management Persannel
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-28 31-Mar-24
Share Capital
Fineoles Chemcal Limiled - 100.00 3 B - " < 100,00
= 100:00 : - = - - 100 00
Deposit Paid
FSPL Sp=iaiities Privale Limiled - i _ . _ 150 ; 150
Total - - - - 1.50 - 1.50
Notes

(a)f

=d parly refalionship is idelified by the management and relied upon by the auditons,

(B} Related parly ransactions includes transaciions of reimbursement
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
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28 SEGMENT REPORTING
Operaling segments are reporied in a manner consistent with the internal reparting provided to the chief operaling decision maker. The
chief operaling decision maker regularly monitors and reviews the operaling results of the whole Company as one sagment i.e.
“Chemical manufacturing”.

Thus, as defined in Ind AS 108 'Operating Ssgments', the Comipany's enlire business falls under this one operalional segment and
hence the necessary informalion has aiready been disciosed in the balance sheet and the slatement of profit and loss.

Thus, 2s defined in Ind AS 108 'Operaling Segments', the Company's enlire business falls under this one operalional segment and
hence the necessary informalion has already been discicsed in the balance sheet and the stalement of profit and loss. Furiher, the
enlire business of the Company is within India, hence there is no geographical segment.

28 Refer Annexure A for Analytical Ralios

29 The Company has nol given any loans or guarantees covered under the provisions of Seclion 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. The
delails of the investmenls made by Company are given in the respeclive notes to the financial slalements.

30 Baiances of Trade Receivabies, Trade Payabies, Advances and Deposils received / given, from / to customers are subject to
confirmalion and subsequent reconcilialion .

31 Other Statutory Information
(i) The Company does not have any benarml property held in its name. No pros
the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prot
thereunder,
(ii) The Compary has nol been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender or government or any
government authority.

ings have been iniliated on or are pending against
on) Act, 1588 (45 of 1988) and Rules made

Companies Acl, 20113 read with the Companies (Resiriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017,

(iv) Utiiisation of borrowed funds and share premium:

(a) The Company has not advanced or loaned or investad funds to any ofher person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign ertities
{Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Inlermediary shall:

'~ Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or en'ilies idenlified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(Ultimate Beneliciaries) or

- Provide any guaranles, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimale beneficiaries.

{b) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or enlity(ies), including foreign enlilies (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whelher recorded in writing or olherwise) thal the Company shall:

'~ Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whalsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(Ultimale Beneficiaries) or

- Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalfl of the ultimale beneficiaries,

(v) There is no income surrendered or disciosed as income during the year in lax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such
as search or survey), that has not been recorded in the books of account.

(vi) The Company has not traded or invested in cryplo currency or virtual currency during the year.

(vii) The Company does not have any charges or salisfaction of charges which is yet to be regislered with Regisirar of Companies
beyond the statutory period.

(viii) The Company do not have any lrarisaction with the slruck off companies,

32 Previous year's figures have been reclassiliediregrouped, wherever appiicable to confirm to current year's ciassification.

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these financial statements

This is the summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory informalion referred to in our report of even d
For CGCA ¢~ Associales LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Direclorsy” -,
Chartered Accountants = CIN:U20287MH2023PTC416393
Firm Reg. No. 123393W/W100755 ; A’,

o

e
Surendrakumar Tibrewala “ Sanjay Tibrewala
Chairman & Managing Director Executive Director & CFO
DIN: 00218394 DIN : 00218525
Mumbai, 20th May, 2025

Mumbai, 20th May, 2025
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Annexure A : Analytical Ratios

|Ratio Numerator 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 Difference
(a) Current Ralia (lim;)_ . Curient Assots . h 25 43.26 ) _,.;,,,,
Current Liabi - - n
(b) Debt-Equity Ralio (limes) —Tolal Debls NA NA NA
Equity
Sarvice C vage Ralio (limes) o
(c) Debt Service Coverage Raliv (limes) Earning avaiiable for Debt NA NA NA
Inlerest + Installments
(d) Return on Equity Ratio {%) Piofit after Tax 1.16% 0545 oo
Average Sharehoider's Equity S S e
(&) Invenlury turnover ratio (tirmes) Total Turm.uer. 761 3.00 9131
Average Inventor
() Trade receivabies tumover ratio (times)
Total Turnover
SR 1.89 0285 123%
Average Account Recejvanle
(9) Trade payables tumover ralio (limes) )
Tolal Purchases 5 87 NA 100%
Average Account Payable
(h) Net capital turmover ratio (fimes) Tolal Turmover
Net Working Capital b1 18 240%
(i) Net profit ratio (%) Net Frofit o o .
Txm-__Jlal Turnover -11.37% 24.51%, -146%
(i} Return on Capital empioyed (% Net Profit 147% T —— a7
Capilal Emplayed B A S
(k) Return on invesiment {%) R=turn on lnv . =g
Averans inves 7.90%, 0.21% 3720%
Notes:
(a) Current Ralio (fimes) Variance is due to increasz in current assels and decreass in current liabiities
(d) Return on Equity Raio (%) Variance is due to increase in gp-n.;ling expense during lh&_z current t?nam ial year as compared to
previous financials as Company is expanding
(e) Inventory tumover ralio (fimes) Variance is on due to increasa in tumover o;!h_idCﬂfITPEJIY as compared lo previous reporing
eriod.
(N Trade receivables turmover ralio (times) The ralio has increased on account of increass in credit pedod and increase in sales,
() Trade payables turnaver ralio (limes) The ralio has increased on account of increass in Credilars and Purchases.
(h) Net capital turnover ratio (fimes) Vatiance is mainly on account of increass in sales and expansion of busine s s aclivity
(i) Net profit ralio (53) Variance is mainly on account of increasz in Dplt:r'elf.ii'\g expenscs on account expansion of business
aclivity
(j) Retum on Capital employed (%) Variance is mainly on account of increase in Dp?:itjgg expenses on account 2xpansion of business
acli
(k) Return on investment (%) Variance is on due to higher returns on iE!v-’ﬂ‘.h:lr{lls me ;.--_:{ed al r:air value through profit and loss as
compaied to previcus reporting period.




